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its policies available to applicants for ap-
pointment to a covered position and to cov-
ered employees in accordance with these reg-
ulations. The act of adopting a veterans’ 
preference policy shall not relieve any em-
ploying office of any other responsibility or 
requirement of the Veterans Employment 
Opportunity Act of 1998 or these regulations. 
An employing office may amend or replace 
its veterans’ preference policies as it deems 
necessary or appropriate, so long as the re-
sulting policies are consistent with the 
VEOA and these regulations. 
SEC. 1.117. PRESERVATION OF RECORDS MADE 

OR KEPT. 
An employing office that employs one or 

more covered employees or that seeks appli-
cants for a covered position shall maintain 
any records relating to the application of its 
veterans’ preference policy to applicants for 
covered positions and to workforce adjust-
ment decisions affecting covered employees 
for a period of at least one year from the 
date of the making of the record or the date 
of the personnel action involved or, if later, 
one year from the date on which the appli-
cant or covered employee is notified of the 
personnel action. Where a claim has been 
brought under section 401 of the CAA against 
an employing office under the VEOA, the re-
spondent employing office shall preserve all 
personnel records relevant to the claim until 
final disposition of the claim. The term ‘‘per-
sonnel records relevant to the claim’’, for ex-
ample, would include records relating to the 
veterans’ preference determination regard-
ing the person bringing the claim and 
records relating to any veterans’ preference 
determinations regarding other applicants 
for the covered position the person sought, 
or records relating to the veterans’ pref-
erence determinations regarding other cov-
ered employees in the person’s position or 
job classification. The date of final disposi-
tion of the charge or the action means the 
latest of the date of expiration of the statu-
tory period within which the aggrieved per-
son may file a complaint with the Office or 
in a U.S. District Court or, where an action 
is brought against an employing office by 
the aggrieved person, the date on which such 
litigation is terminated. 
SEC. 1.118. DISSEMINATION OF VETERANS’ PREF-

ERENCE POLICIES TO APPLICANTS 
FOR COVERED POSITIONS. 

(a) An employing office shall state in any 
announcements and advertisements it makes 
concerning vacancies in covered positions 
that the staffing action is governed by the 
VEOA. 

(b) An employing office shall invite appli-
cants for a covered position to identify 
themselves as veterans’ preference eligible 
applicants, provided that in doing so: 

(1) the employing office shall state clearly 
on any written application or questionnaire 
used for this purpose or make clear orally, if 
a written application or questionnaire is not 
used, that the requested information is in-
tended for use solely in connection with the 
employing office’s obligations and efforts to 
provide veterans’ preference to preference el-
igible applicants in accordance with the 
VEOA; and 

(2) the employing office shall state clearly 
that disabled veteran status is requested on 
a voluntary basis, that it will be kept con-
fidential in accordance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) 
as applied by section 102(a)(3) of the CAA, 2 
U.S.C. § 1302(a)(3), that refusal to provide it 
will not subject the individual to any ad-
verse treatment except the possibility of an 
adverse determination regarding the individ-
ual’s status as a preference eligible applicant 
as a disabled veteran under the VEOA, and 
that any information obtained in accordance 
with this section concerning the medical 

condition or history of an individual will be 
collected, maintained and used only in ac-
cordance with the Americans with Disabil-
ities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) as applied 
by section 102(a)(3) of the CAA, 2 U.S.C. 
§ 1302(a)(3). 

(3) the employing office shall state clearly 
that applicants may request information 
about the employing office’s veterans’ pref-
erence policies as they relate to appoint-
ments to covered positions, and shall de-
scribe the employing office’s procedures for 
making such requests. 

(c) Upon written request by an applicant 
for a covered position, an employing office 
shall provide the following information in 
writing: 

(1) the VEOA definition of veterans’ ‘‘pref-
erence eligible’’ as set forth in 5 U.S.C. 2108 
or any superseding legislation, providing the 
actual, current definition in a manner de-
signed to be understood by applicants, along 
with the statutory citation; 

(2) the employing office’s veterans’ pref-
erence policy or a summary description of 
the employing office’s veterans’ preference 
policy as it relates to appointments to cov-
ered positions, including any procedures the 
employing office shall use to identify pref-
erence eligible employees; 

(3) the employing office may provide other 
information to applicants regarding its vet-
erans’ preference policies and practices, but 
is not required to do so by these regulations. 

(d) Employing offices are also expected to 
answer questions from applicants for covered 
positions that are relevant and non-confiden-
tial concerning the employing office’s vet-
erans’ preference policies and practices. 
SEC. 1.119. INFORMATION REGARDING VET-

ERANS’ PREFERENCE DETERMINA-
TIONS IN APPOINTMENTS. 

Upon written request by an applicant for a 
covered position, the employing office shall 
promptly provide a written explanation of 
the manner in which veterans’ preference 
was applied in the employing office’s ap-
pointment decision regarding that applicant. 
Such explanation shall include at a min-
imum: 

(a) the employing office’s veterans’ pref-
erence policy or a summary description of 
the employing office’s veterans’ preference 
policy as it relates to appointments to cov-
ered positions; and 

(b) a statement as to whether the applicant 
is preference eligible and, if not, a brief 
statement of the reasons for the employing 
office’s determination that the applicant is 
not preference eligible. 
SEC. 1.120. DISSEMINATION OF VETERANS’ PREF-

ERENCE POLICIES TO COVERED EM-
PLOYEES. 

(a) If an employing office that employs one 
or more covered employees provides any 
written guidance to such employees con-
cerning employee rights generally or reduc-
tions in force more specifically, such as in a 
written employee policy, manual or hand-
book, such guidance must include informa-
tion concerning veterans’ preference under 
the VEOA, as set forth in subsection (b) of 
this regulation. 

(b) Written guidances described in sub-
section (a) above shall include, at a min-
imum: 

(1) the VEOA definition of veterans’ ‘‘pref-
erence eligible’’ as set forth in 5 U.S.C. 2108 
or any superseding legislation, providing the 
actual, current definition along with the 
statutory citation; 

(2) the employing office’s veterans’ pref-
erence policy or a summary description of 
the employing office’s veterans’ preference 
policy as it relates to reductions in force, in-
cluding the procedures the employing office 
shall take to identify preference eligible em-
ployees. 

(3) the employing office may provide other 
information in its guidances regarding its 
veterans’ preference policies and practices, 
but is not required to do so by these regula-
tions. 

(c) Employing offices are also expected to 
answer questions from covered employees 
that are relevant and non-confidential con-
cerning the employing office’s veterans’ pref-
erence policies and practices. 
SEC. 1.121. WRITTEN NOTICE PRIOR TO A REDUC-

TION IN FORCE. 
(a) Except as provided under subsection (c), 

a covered employee may not be released due 
to a reduction in force, unless the covered 
employee and the covered employee’s exclu-
sive representative for collective-bargaining 
purposes (if any) are given written notice, in 
conformance with the requirements of para-
graph (b), at least 60 days before the covered 
employee is so released. 

(b) Any notice under paragraph (a) shall in-
clude - 

(1) the personnel action to be taken with 
respect to the covered employee involved; 

(2) the effective date of the action; 
(3) a description of the procedures applica-

ble in identifying employees for release; 
(4) the covered employee’s competitive 

area; 
(5) the covered employee’s eligibility for 

veterans’ preference in retention and how 
that preference eligibility was determined; 

(6) the retention status and preference eli-
gibility of the other employees in the af-
fected position classifications or job classi-
fications within the covered employee’s com-
petitive area, by providing: 

(A) a list of all covered employee(s) in the 
covered employee’s position classification or 
job classification and competitive area who 
will be retained by the employing office, 
identifying those employees by job title only 
and stating whether each such employee is 
preference eligible, and 

(B) a list of all covered employee(s) in the 
covered employee’s position classification or 
job classification and competitive area who 
will not be retained by the employing office, 
identifying those employees by job title only 
and stating whether each such employee is 
preference eligible. 

(7) a description of any appeal or other 
rights which may be available. 

(c) The director of the employing office 
may, in writing, shorten the period of ad-
vance notice required under subsection (a), 
with respect to a particular reduction in 
force, if necessary because of circumstances 
not reasonably foreseeable. 

(d) No notice period may be shortened to 
less than 30 days under this subsection. 

f 

EXECUTIVE COMMUNICATIONS, 
ETC. 

Under clause 8 of rule XII, executive 
communications were taken from the 
Speaker’s table and referred as follows: 

5728. A letter from the Comptroller, De-
partment of Defense, transmitting a report 
of a violation of the Antideficiency Act by 
the Department of the Navy, Case Number 
07-09, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1351; to the Com-
mittee on Appropriations. 

5729. A letter from the Comptroller, De-
partment of Defense, transmitting a report 
of a violation of the Antideficiency Act by 
the Department of the Navy, Case Number 
07-08, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1517(b); to the 
Committee on Appropriations. 

5730. A letter from the Comptroller, De-
partment of Defense, transmitting a report 
of a violation of the Antideficiency Act by 
the Department of the Navy, Case Number 
07-06, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1351; to the Com-
mittee on Appropriations. 
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5731. A letter from the Secretary, Depart-

ment of Homeland Security, transmitting a 
report of a violation of the Antideficiency 
Act in the Treasury Appropriation Fund, 
pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1351; to the Committee 
on Appropriations. 

5732. A letter from the Director, Selective 
Service System, transmitting a report of a 
violation of the Antideficiency Act, pursuant 
to 31 U.S.C. 1351; to the Committee on Appro-
priations. 

5733. A letter from the Principal Deputy 
Under Secretary for Personnel and Readi-
ness, Department of Defense, transmitting 
report on the Family Subsistence Supple-
mental Allowance (FSSA) program, covering 
the period October 1, 2006, through Sep-
tember 30, 2007, pursuant to 37 U.S.C. 402(a) 
Public Law 106-398, section 604(a); to the 
Committee on Armed Services. 

5734. A letter from the Under Secretary for 
Acquisition, Technology and Logistics, De-
partment of Defense, transmitting the De-
partment’s Commercial Activities Report for 
2007, pursuant to 10 U.S.C. 2462(b); to the 
Committee on Armed Services. 

5735. A letter from the Director, Pentagon 
Renovation and Construction Program Of-
fice, Department of Defense, transmitting 
the eighteenth annual report on the Pen-
tagon Renovation and Construction Program 
Office (PENREN), pursuant to 10 U.S.C. 2674; 
to the Committee on Armed Services. 

5736. A letter from the Director, Army Na-
tional Guard, Department of Defense, trans-
mitting a report on the Army National 
Guard’s Annual Financial Statement for FY 
2007; to the Committee on Armed Services. 

5737. A letter from the District of Columbia 
Auditor, Office of the District of Columbia 
Auditor, transmitting a copy of a report en-
titled ‘‘Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Report on 
Advisory Neighborhood Commissions,’’ pur-
suant to D.C. Code section 47-117(d); to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5738. A letter from the Federal Co-Chair-
man, Delta Regional Authority, transmit-
ting in compliance with the Accountability 
for Tax Dollars Act of 2002 (ATDA), a copy of 
the Authority’s Audited Financial State-
ments for FY 2007, pursuant to Public Law 
106-554, section 382L; to the Committee on 
Oversight and Government Reform. 

5739. A letter from the Under Secretary for 
Acquisitions, Technology and Logistics, De-
partment of Defense, transmitting the De-
partment’s annual report on the implemen-
tation of Pub. L. 106-107, the Federal Finan-
cial Assistance Management Improvement 
Act of 1999; to the Committee on Oversight 
and Government Reform. 

5740. A letter from the Associate General 
Counsel for General Law, Department of 
Homeland Security, transmitting a report 
pursuant to the Federal Vacancies Reform 
Act of 1998; to the Committee on Oversight 
and Government Reform. 

5741. A letter from the General Counsel, 
Department of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment, transmitting a report pursuant to the 
Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5742. A letter from the General Counsel, 
Department of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment, transmitting a report pursuant to the 
Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5743. A letter from the General Counsel, 
Department of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment, transmitting a report pursuant to the 
Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5744. A letter from the General Counsel, 
Department of Housing and Urban Develop-

ment, transmitting a report pursuant to the 
Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5745. A letter from the General Counsel, 
Department of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment, transmitting a report pursuant to the 
Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5746. A letter from the White House Liai-
son, Department of Justice, transmitting a 
report pursuant to the Federal Vacancies Re-
form Act of 1998; to the Committee on Over-
sight and Government Reform. 

5747. A letter from the Principal Deputy 
Assistant Attorney General, Department of 
Justice, transmitting the Department’s Fed-
eral Information Security Management Act 
and Agency Privacy Management Report, 
pursuant to Public Law 107-296; to the Com-
mittee on Oversight and Government Re-
form. 

5748. A letter from the Assistant Secretary 
for Administration and Mgmt., Department 
of Labor, transmitting a report pursuant to 
the Federal Vacancies Reform Act of 1998; to 
the Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform. 

5749. A letter from the Attorney Advisor, 
Department of Transportation, transmitting 
a report pursuant to the Federal Vacancies 
Reform Act of 1998; to the Committee on 
Oversight and Government Reform. 

5750. A letter from the Assistant Secretary 
for Policy and Planning, Department of Vet-
erans Affairs, transmitting in accordance 
with Pub. L. 105-270, the Federal Activities 
Inventory Reform Act of 1998 (FAIR Act), the 
Department’s inventory of commercial ac-
tivities for calendar year 2006; to the Com-
mittee on Oversight and Government Re-
form. 

5751. A letter from the Chairman, Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation, transmitting 
the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Performance 
Plan, in accordance with the Government 
Performance and Results Act of 1993; to the 
Committee on Oversight and Government 
Reform. 

5752. A letter from the Chairman, Federal 
Election Commission, transmitting the Com-
mission’s Strategic Plan for Fiscal Years 
2008 through 2013, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 306; to 
the Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform. 

5753. A letter from the Chief Operating Of-
ficer/President, Financing Corporation, 
transmitting a copy of the Financing Cor-
poration’s Statement on Internal Controls 
and the 2007 Audited Financial Statements, 
pursuant to Public Law 101-73, section 511(a) 
(103 Stat. 404); to the Committee on Over-
sight and Government Reform. 

5754. A letter from the Administrator, Gen-
eral Services Administration, transmitting 
notification of the new mileage reimburse-
ment rates for Federal employees who use 
privately owned vehicles while on official 
travel, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 5707(b)(1)(A); to 
the Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform. 

5755. A letter from the Chairman, Merit 
Systems Protection Board, transmitting the 
Board’s report entitled, ‘‘Attracting the 
Next Generation: A Look at Federal Entry- 
Level New Hires,’’ pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 
1204(a)(3); to the Committee on Oversight 
and Government Reform. 

5756. A letter from the General Counsel, 
National Labor Relations Board, transmit-
ting the Board’s report on the amount of ac-
quisitions made from entities that manufac-
ture the articles, materials, or supplies out-
side the United States in Fiscal Year 2007; to 
the Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform. 

5757. A letter from the Chief Executive Of-
ficer, Neighborhood Reinvestment Corpora-

tion, transmitting the Corporation’s 2007 An-
nual Performance Plan, in accordance with 
the Government Performance and Results 
Act of 1993; to the Committee on Oversight 
and Government Reform. 

5758. A letter from the President and CEO, 
Overseas Private Investment Corporation, 
transmitting the Corporation’s report on the 
use of the Category Rating System during 
fiscal year 2007, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 3319(d); 
to the Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform. 

5759. A letter from the Chief Operating Of-
ficer/President, Resolution Funding Corpora-
tion, transmitting a copy of the Resolution 
Funding Corporation’s Statement on Inter-
nal Controls and the 2007 Audited Financial 
Statements, pursuant to Public Law 101-73, 
section 511(a) (103 Stat. 404); to the Com-
mittee on Oversight and Government Re-
form. 

5760. A letter from the Chair, Office of 
Compliance, transmitting the Office’s report 
on the adoption of regulations implementing 
employment rights and protection for Vet-
erans, as required by the Congressional Ac-
countability Act of 1995, pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 
1316a; jointly to the Committees on Edu-
cation and Labor and House Administration. 

f 

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES ON 
PUBLIC BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS 

Under clause 2 of rule XIII, reports of 
committees were delivered to the Clerk 
for printing and reference to the proper 
calendar, as follows: 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 4933. A bill to amend the Lacey 
Act Amendments of 1981 to protect captive 
wildlife and to make technical corrections, 
and for other purposes (Rept. 110–551). Re-
ferred to the Committee of the Whole House 
on the State of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 3891. A bill to amend the Na-
tional Fish and Wildlife Foundation Estab-
lishment Act to increase the number of Di-
rectors on the Board of Directors of the Na-
tional Fish and Wildlife Foundation (Rept. 
110–552). Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole House on the State of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 2675. A bill to provide for the 
conveyance of approximately 140 acres of 
land in the Ouachita National Forest in 
Oklahoma to the Indian Nations Council, 
Inc., of the Boy Scouts of America, and for 
other purposes; with an amendment (Rept. 
110–553). Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole House of the State of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 3651. A bill to require the con-
veyance of certain public land within the 
boundaries of Camp Williams, Utah, to sup-
port the training and readiness of the Utah 
National Guard; with an amendment (Rept. 
110–554). Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole House on the State of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 2515. A bill to authorize appro-
priations for the Bureau of Reclamation to 
carry out the Lower Colorado River Multi- 
Species Conservation Program in the States 
of Arizona, California, and Nevada, and for 
other purposes; with an amendment (Rept. 
110–555). Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole House on the State of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 3352. A bill to reauthorize and 
amend the Hydrographic Services Improve-
ment Act, and for other purposes; with an 
amendment (Rept. 110–556). Referred to the 
Committee of the Whole House on the State 
of the Union. 

Mr. RAHALL: Committee on Natural Re-
sources. H.R. 1187. A bill to expand the 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 02:32 Apr 01, 2008 Jkt 069060 PO 00000 Frm 00046 Fmt 4634 Sfmt 0634 E:\CR\FM\L31MR7.000 H31MRPT1w
w

oo
ds

2 
on

 P
R

O
D

P
C

68
 w

ith
 H

O
U

S
E


		Superintendent of Documents
	2025-10-15T09:41:24-0400
	Government Publishing Office, Washington, DC 20401
	U.S. Government Publishing Office
	Government Publishing Office attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by Government Publishing Office




